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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We have Caroline

          3  Kurtz, who is our Financial Analyst, and Robert

          4  Newman, the Counsel to the Committee, to my

          5  immediate right. And Susan Russell, who is my Chief

          6  of Staff and General Counsel, will be coming back,

          7  she will be sitting over to my left. My name is

          8  Robert Jackson, I'm the Chair of the Committee here

          9  representing the great Borough of Manhattan.

         10                 Good afternoon, and welcome to this

         11  meeting on the Council's Committee on Contracts. I'm

         12  Robert Jackson, chair of this Committee. This

         13  afternoon we will be considering Intro. 156, a bill

         14  that would require the City to procure Energy Star

         15  and other energy-efficient products.

         16                 Energy Star is the national symbol

         17  for energy efficiency. The Energy Star Program is a

         18  voluntary labeling program whereby energy-efficient

         19  products are certified and labeled with the Energy

         20  Star logo.

         21                 The US Environmental Protection

         22  Agency, EPA, certifies products that meet or exceed

         23  performance guidelines the agency has set.

         24                 The overall difference between Energy

         25  Star labeled products and the conventional products
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          2  is that Energy Star products enter a sleep low-power

          3  mode when not in use for a certain amount of time.

          4                 And additionally, these products

          5  eliminate waste through a special power management

          6  feature. These differences mean that Energy Star

          7  Products can use half as much electricity as do

          8  conventional products.

          9                 Currently, New York State is among

         10  the nation's top energy consumers. It is also among

         11  the nation's top energy spenders.

         12                 New Yorkers pay approximately 25

         13  percent more than the average US citizen does for

         14  home energy costs in part because energy costs are

         15  higher here in New York City.

         16                 In New York City we have seen the

         17  effects of a system stressed with too great a demand

         18  for energy. Year-after-year New Yorkers have lived

         19  with a threat of peak season shortages with

         20  sometimes devastating effects on entire communities.

         21  And I know personally my experience up in Washington

         22  Heights two years ago.

         23                 Furthermore, City residents are

         24  repeatedly told that the new powerplants must be

         25  built to meet the City's future energy demand.
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          2                 Now more than ever it is therefore

          3  vital that New York City use energy more

          4  efficiently.  Energy efficiency is beneficial on

          5  many levels. Energy Star and other energy efficient

          6  products reduce energy waste, thereby reducing the

          7  amount the City spends on energy. A decrease in

          8  energy use can also result in a decrease in the

          9  amount that electricity costs.

         10                 Further, energy efficient products

         11  could save the City maintenance and replacement cost

         12  on this equipment, and would also decrease supply

         13  cost for paper-using machines, like copiers and

         14  printers.

         15                 These cost savings can translate into

         16  significant dollar savings for the City and its

         17  taxpayers.

         18                 Another benefit of using energy

         19  efficient products is that the City can help

         20  maintain an adequate and continuous supply of energy

         21  thereby reducing the peak use shortages that

         22  threaten us each summer.

         23                 On July 3rd of this year, usage

         24  peaked at 12,080 megawatts, the fourth highest peak

         25  demand in Con Ed history. In fact, usage was so high
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          2  during this period that to prevent failure of its

          3  distribution cables, Con Edison was forced to reduce

          4  voltage to certain neighborhoods in the Bronx and

          5  Brooklyn by eight percent.

          6                 During this period, Con Edison asks

          7  customers not to use appliances and to turn off

          8  lights and televisions when not needed.

          9                 Let me remind you, it is still early

         10  summer. In fact, the highest historic peak usage

         11  periods occurred in late July and early August.

         12                 So, we still have a long way to go

         13  this summer. Energy-efficient products have a

         14  positive impact on the environment, as well. Energy

         15  is generated by burning fossil fuels to release

         16  pollutants into the air that contribute to smog,

         17  acid rain, respiratory disease and global climate

         18  change.

         19                 By purchasing energy-efficient

         20  products, the City can help reduce the amount of

         21  pollutants released into the air, thereby improving

         22  air quality and New Yorkers' quality of life.

         23                 Yet another benefit of using

         24  energy-efficient products is that by reducing the

         25  amount of energy the City needs, energy-efficient

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  products reduce the City's, and consequently, the

          3  nation's reliance on imported sources of energy.

          4                 In a time when the City faces

          5  financial crisis, the proper implementation of

          6  Intro. No. 156 could result in significant savings

          7  for this City.

          8                 With such reductions in energy

          9  expenditures, the City could funnel the savings into

         10  other much-needed services that were recently cut

         11  due to the current budget crisis.

         12                 The City could take advantage of all

         13  these numerous benefits without sacrificing quality

         14  or performance.

         15                 While this bill is not a panacea, it

         16  would make a great tool for our arsenal in

         17  addressing current and future energy-related

         18  challenges.

         19                 I would like to take this opportunity

         20  to commend the Speaker, Gifford Miller, for

         21  introducing this important bill, and I look forward

         22  to helping shepard the bill through its passage into

         23  law.

         24                 Today we will be hearing from a

         25  number of experts in this matter, including
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          2  representatives of the federal Environmental

          3  Protection Agency, the New York State Energy

          4  Research and Development Authority, the Natural

          5  Resources Defense Council, and the New York League

          6  of Conservation Voters.

          7                 First, we will hear from the

          8  Administration by the way of its Commissioner,

          9  Martha Hirst, for DCAS, City of New York.

         10                 Welcome.

         11                 And before I begin, I would like to

         12  just take this opportunity before I forget, that we

         13  have an intern by the name of Andreana Joannidis,

         14  who is an intern. She is going to be a third-year

         15  law student at New York Law School, and she was very

         16  helpful helping our counsel Robert Newman, and I

         17  would just like to introduce her.

         18                 Thank you very much for all of your

         19  hard work this summer.

         20                 And before we begin, I'd just like to

         21  introduce the other members. Council Member, to my

         22  right, Margarita Lopez. To my right, representing

         23  the great Borough of Manhattan. And to my left, Dr.

         24  Kendall Stewart, representing the great Borough of

         25  Brooklyn.
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          2                 Robert.

          3                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

          4  hand.

          5                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

          6  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

          7  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: I do.

          9                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your name

         10  and affiliation for the record.

         11                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: I'm Martha Hirst.

         12  I'm Commissioner of the New York City Department of

         13  Citywide Administrative Services.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thanks for

         15  coming, Commissioner.

         16                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Thank you,

         17  Chairman Jackson.

         18                 Good afternoon to you, Council

         19  Members Clarke and Lopez and Stewart, members of the

         20  Council staff and other invited guests.

         21                 I am Martha Hirst from DCAS. I'm

         22  joined today by other colleagues from my agency,

         23  Deputy Commissioner of Municipal Supply Services,

         24  Virginia Ross.

         25                 Would you stand up, Virginia?
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          2                 Deputy Commissioner of Legal

          3  Services, Lois Finkleman. Assistant Commissioner and

          4  Chief Contracting Officer of the Division of

          5  Municipal Supply Service, Carol Green; and Director

          6  of Special Projects, Jennifer Blum.

          7                 Before I begin, Mr. Chairman, I just

          8  wanted to tell you how pleased I was to hear your

          9  commentary on the need for us to cut back energy

         10  usage in the summer days, and noting that the summer

         11  is early in its time. DCAS pays the City of New

         12  York's energy bills, and, so, we have a very active

         13  program of energy conservation, and we also have a

         14  program of reaching out each and every time there's

         15  a hint of any heat issues, to get people to either

         16  power down in their buildings, or simply do things

         17  like turn off lights that aren't necessary, turn off

         18  printers and the like.

         19                 So, we had a very busy week, the

         20  first week of July, over the holidays, some of the

         21  people in this room spent two days around the clock

         22  at the Office of Emergency Management, hoping to

         23  ensure that we would have lighting capability and

         24  water supply and so forth. So, I appreciate your

         25  commentary on that, and glad that we'll all continue
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          2  to be mindful of it.

          3                 Thank you, too, for the opportunity

          4  to testify about Intro. 156 today, which would

          5  require that energy-using products procured by the

          6  City of New York meet Energy Star requirements.

          7                 We share your overall objective that

          8  the City in its role is market participant should

          9  promote the purchasing of energy-efficient products.

         10                 DCAS, the Department of Citywide

         11  Administrative Services, through its Division of

         12  Municipal Supply Services, DMSS, is responsible for

         13  the procurement of goods available for use by City

         14  agencies.

         15                 In that role, we currently have ten

         16  contracts for Energy Star-compliant products. These

         17  products include photocopiers, fax machines,

         18  televisions and VCRs, window air conditioners and

         19  lamps.

         20                 During Fiscal Year 2002, the Fiscal

         21  Year that just passed, $18.6 million was expended by

         22  the City on these items.

         23                 In fact, DMSS has been in the

         24  forefront of requiring energy efficiency in the

         25  products it procures for City use.
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          2                 Energy Star, as you mentioned, I

          3  think, was first introduced in 1992 by USEPA as a

          4  voluntary labeling program, designed to identify and

          5  promote energy-efficient products.

          6                 Since then, 34 product categories and

          7  approximately 11,000 product models have received

          8  the Energy Star label. The first Energy Star labeled

          9  product line was introduced in June 1992, and

         10  included personal computers and monitors.

         11                 The next time thereafter that DMSS

         12  elicited sealed competitive bids for personal

         13  computers and monitors, was in early 1994, and I'm

         14  pleased to report that our specifications at that

         15  time required that the basic system with monitor

         16  must be energy start compliant.

         17                 Since then, all personal computers

         18  and their associated monitors purchased for City use

         19  have been Energy Star compliant.

         20                 When laser printers received the

         21  Energy Star label, our specifications were changed

         22  to include this requirement.

         23                 In FY 2002, $9.8 million was spent on

         24  personal computers, monitors and printers. In

         25  addition, last year, $62.4 million was spent by the
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          2  City on personal computers, monitors, and printers

          3  through contracts negotiated by the New York State

          4  Office of General Services.

          5                 These products are all Energy Star

          6  compliant.

          7                 As the EPA added additional product

          8  lines to the list of Energy Star labeled products,

          9  DMSS changed specifications to include this

         10  requirement.

         11                 Since mid-1995, Energy Star

         12  specifications have also been included in

         13  solicitations for photocopiers and fax machines.

         14                 The DMSS 1996 sealed competitive bid

         15  for photocopiers required, and I quote, "an

         16  automatic energy-saver mode, or an automatic

         17  shut-off" as compliant with Energy Star

         18  recommendations.

         19                 Today DCAS continues to play a

         20  leading role in the procurement of energy-efficient

         21  products for the City of New York.

         22                 In addition to procuring Energy Star

         23  labeled products for City agencies, DCAS has been

         24  training agency chief contracting officers and

         25  procurement staff on purchasing for energy
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          2  efficiency through our procurement training

          3  institute course entitled Environmentally Preferable

          4  Purchasing.

          5                 An entire section of that course is

          6  devoted for purchasing for energy efficiency, and I

          7  think last year there were six different sections of

          8  that course offered, so most agency chief

          9  contracting officers have taken that particular

         10  course by now.

         11                 As new standards for energy

         12  efficiency are developed and as new products receive

         13  Energy Star labeling, DMSS will review the product

         14  listings and decide if a new Citywide requirement

         15  contract would best meet the needs of the City of

         16  New York.

         17                 City agencies are mandated to buy

         18  products from requirement contracts when such

         19  contracts exist.

         20                 Thus, establishing a requirement

         21  contract for a product that has received energy star

         22  labeling, will assure that the Energy Star labeled

         23  product is procured for use by City agencies.

         24                 However, further expansion of our

         25  Energy Star product procurement is complicated by
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          2  the fact that there are a number of product areas

          3  where there is currently only one manufacturer of an

          4  Energy Star labeled product. In those cases, by

          5  stipulating Energy Star compliance, DMSS would be

          6  restricting competition, which is not in line with

          7  the City's competitive sealed bid practices.

          8  Furthermore, some Energy Star products may in fact

          9  cost more to procure, without necessarily

         10  significant or offsetting energy savings.

         11                 Further, I've been advised by counsel

         12  that Intro. 156, as currently drafted, raises some

         13  serious questions of consistency with State-mandated

         14  policies of competitive bidding, as codified in

         15  Section 103 of the General Municipal Law and

         16  implemented in Charter Chapter 13.

         17                 Those policies essentially require

         18  the City to award a contract to the lowest

         19  responsible bidder meeting the specifications for

         20  the goods to be procured, and they further have been

         21  construed to require that those specifications be

         22  drafted to further the interests underlying the

         23  competitive bidding laws.

         24                 The proposed legislation's

         25  requirement that certain products be
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          2  purchased"whenever the price is reasonably

          3  competitive and the quality adequate" appears to

          4  diverge from the language and purpose of such

          5  competitive bidding mandates.

          6                 In closing, I would like to reiterate

          7  that with respect to the procurement of energy

          8  efficient products, the City of New York already

          9  leads by example. The legislative findings of Intro.

         10  156 suggests that the City should lead by example,

         11  and I'm here to report that we do.

         12                 Our purchases of Energy Star

         13  photocopiers, fax machines, printers, personal

         14  computers, monitors, TVs and VCRs, air conditioners

         15  and lamps amounted to a total of $90.8 million last

         16  fiscal year.

         17                 We recognize the importance of

         18  continuing our energy conservation efforts, which we

         19  undertook beginning eight years ago, by exercising

         20  the City's purchasing power to ensure that Energy

         21  Star products are procured whenever it makes sound,

         22  economic and legal sense.

         23                 We look forward to continuing our

         24  discussions with you, Chairman Jackson, other

         25  members of the Council, of course the Speakers
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          2  Office and your staff, and continuing to work with

          3  the Council more broadly on the City's energy

          4  conservation efforts.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

          7  Commissioner.

          8                 Questions from members?

          9                 Council Member Lopez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: As you notice,

         11  I am not a sponsor of this bill, and it's not

         12  because I don't support conservation, I do. I

         13  consider myself an environmentalist. But I wanted to

         14  see the fundamental of this piece of legislation,

         15  and I have a lot of questions.

         16                 For example, I want to know if the

         17  City has in any place accumulated information about

         18  how much money they have economized, from the policy

         19  of buying technology that is energy efficient,

         20  compared to the time that they didn't; do we have

         21  that information available? It's reflected in the

         22  bills that we pay on the electricity, or any place,

         23  in order to compare?

         24                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: We may have a set

         25  of assumptions that we could talk together about.
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          2                 It is very difficult to do, for

          3  several reasons: One, we'd be comparing two

          4  different periods of time. In some of these

          5  instances, as I've described, we simply added to our

          6  specification an Energy Star requirement. So, it

          7  wasn't as if in a procurement we could compare

          8  apples to apples, in that we could compare the cost

          9  of buying today an Energy Star air conditioner, and

         10  what that bid would be, versus a non-Energy Star

         11  piece of equipment and what that would --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You don't have

         13  that information.

         14                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: We don't have

         15  that side-by-side.

         16                 The other thing to know is that the

         17  cost of energy varies, and, so, assumptions get made

         18  about Energy Star products, as to what the cost

         19  would be, and there's some analysis sometimes as to

         20  what the savings might be, but the actual cost at

         21  the point you're procuring the products varies.

         22                 And further, with the City of New

         23  York, when we implement and use those products, for

         24  instance, in One Centre Street, the Manhattan

         25  municipal building where I work, we pay an energy
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          2  bill for the entire building, and it is very

          3  difficult to know which aspects of energy efficiency

          4  account for which dollars and what the savings are

          5  as compared to what they would have been if we

          6  didn't have that equipment. It's a very difficult

          7  analysis to do.

          8                 We do assume, however, that

          9  energy-efficient products do all the things the

         10  Chairman's remarks described, and that is, enhance

         11  the useful life of the product, and perhaps all of

         12  the things being equal, reduce the overall energy

         13  cost.

         14                 But broad numbers to be able to

         15  really compare what would have occurred had we

         16  bought non-Energy Star products - very difficult to

         17  do.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The reason I

         19  ask that question is because, I have this belief

         20  that, perhaps I'm wrong, but human behavior is the

         21  biggest factor in here, in my opinion, in an energy

         22  saving efficiency system, in which when you leave

         23  the office, you turn off the light.

         24                 And the reason I ask that question is

         25  because I have seen that we do not have in our City
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          2  system a policy that educates, mandates and try to

          3  develop the custom in all of us, that we need to

          4  begin economizing money and the energy that we

          5  spend, inside of government.

          6                 And when I see these pieces of

          7  legislation, I was very concerned when I saw this

          8  particular one, precisely because the procurement

          9  process, and how that will affect the bidding

         10  process in the way of buying the cheapest possible

         11  equipment, knowing also that the cheapest equipment,

         12  if that energy efficiency component attached to it

         13  would be better. There are cases in which the

         14  product doesn't exist, and then what do you do. Then

         15  I empathize very much with your testimony in that

         16  regard, and that was one of the reasons I didn't

         17  sign to this legislation.

         18                 But I also was curious to know if you

         19  have a program in place that deal with human

         20  behavior in the different agencies?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes, we do.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What kind of a

         23  program do you have? What it does? Does it teach new

         24  personnel how to deal with these questions? Who is

         25  in charge of turning off the light?
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          2                 I mean, I need to know if our

          3  government if familiarized with all this, because

          4  I'm going to tell you this: In the Council, we're

          5  not. In the Council we're not economizing money, in

          6  energy efficiency behavior, and I want to know where

          7  we are on this?

          8                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: We actually have

          9  a very fine program in that regard.

         10                 We have an energy liaison in every

         11  agency of the City of New York. There may even be --

         12  well, perhaps you'll identify a Council staff

         13  person, and we'd be glad to come over and work with

         14  you all to do that.

         15                 Agency heads receive from me at the

         16  start and end of each heat season information about

         17  their obligations as heads of agencies with regard

         18  to air conditioning and electricity usage and so

         19  forth.

         20                 Every single year, I was at

         21  Sanitation before I was at DCAS, and I used to get

         22  Bill Diamond's memos about air conditioning, and I

         23  used to read it and say, yes, this is important.

         24  Well, now I sign those memos and they're

         25  increasingly important to me.
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          2                 But in addition, every single agency

          3  has an energy liaison that works closely with our

          4  Energy Conservation Office, and, so, we work -- as I

          5  say, last week when there was the threat on the 2nd

          6  and 3rd of July, every agency got contacted, the

          7  energy liaison, people in those agencies already

          8  knew what to do, in terms of powering down.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: How do you know

         10  that this worked?

         11                 How do you know that the regular

         12  employee is involved in understanding that we need

         13  to economize energy?

         14                 How do you know that these whole

         15  programs are useful, that they function, if we don't

         16  have data that demonstrate that?

         17                 And, again, I ask you the question

         18  about, if we have seen a change in dollars and cents

         19  when we buy energy efficiency equipment, compared to

         20  something else, because what I'm looking at in here

         21  is to look, where is it that we are economizing

         22  money through implementation of policy, through

         23  implementation of equipment that we buy? Where is

         24  it? Do we measure this? Do we ever bother to do it?

         25                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: We have a sense
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          2  broadly of our energy bills. We do have -- we pay

          3  all the City's energy bills. In terms of individual

          4  behavior, do I know for sure that each of you turns

          5  out the lights in your office? No, I don't know that

          6  for sure. I don't know that about every City of New

          7  York employee.

          8                 I do know from the Chief Engineers in

          9  my Department that manage a certain number of City

         10  buildings, that when we reduce usage, we know it in

         11  the building. We know when we've powered down, we

         12  know when there's less pressure on the system, we

         13  know when we're not blowing fuses and when air

         14  conditioners aren't having trouble, and when

         15  elevator cables aren't stretching because of the

         16  heat. We know in real terms from the facilities

         17  management that the tenants in a building are doing

         18  their job. That's one of the ways we know.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But that

         20  information exists somewhere that we can get it?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Does it exist in

         22  a quantified way? I'll be glad to check. I'm not

         23  sure that we can measure day-by-day for you, but let

         24  me see if we have it.

         25                 We also have energy conservation
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          2  projects that we institute, some of them funded

          3  through the New York Power Authority. We have some

          4  successful lighting projects, including a big one

          5  that's been underway at One Center Street where we

          6  reduce the wattage that we use and use more energy

          7  efficient lighting, and all the procurement

          8  specifications that I describe.

          9                 Does every new employee get that

         10  training when they come into government? I don't

         11  think so.

         12                 There's a lot of training that we do

         13  get as new or transferred employees, but we do have

         14  a very active energy coordinator program in each

         15  agency, they're all people that are familiar with

         16  each other, they're familiar with our energy

         17  conservation staff, and it's an ongoing program.

         18                 Is there more to be done? Probably.

         19  There's always more to be done in these regards.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: My last point.

         21  In regard of your testimony, you indicate that there

         22  are certain products that don't exist in energy

         23  efficiency form, and that that would be problematic

         24  therefore for the procurement process to buy certain

         25  products.
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          2                 If we can modify this legislation to

          3  allow those particular products that don't find,

          4  that are not possible to find in an energy

          5  efficiency way, that would be amicable to the

          6  Administration? Because after all, we should be

          7  buying products that are energy efficiency (sic) no

          8  matter what.

          9                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: It's certainly

         10  moving in the right direction. I said a couple of

         11  things, one was that point that there are products

         12  that aren't yet, and the bill, in fact, acknowledges

         13  that, that there are products that aren't yet energy

         14  star labeled or energy efficient.

         15                 There are some products that have

         16  just one energy star manufacturer, which means that

         17  there would be no competition. We're worried about

         18  that.

         19                 Our biggest worry is the underlying

         20  real concern that we're obligated in the City of New

         21  York to award contracts to the lowest responsible

         22  bidder. Not at a reasonably competitive price, but

         23  at the lowest price. You made that point yourself.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         25                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: And that's our
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          2  broadest concern about this legislation. There may

          3  be ways that we could talk further and we'd be

          4  pleased to do that about these issues involving a

          5  piece of legislation, but we have some very

          6  fundamental concerns about requiring something that

          7  we think we might be precluded from participating in

          8  when we have an obligation, which the State of New

          9  York does not have, which a lot of other

         10  jurisdictions do not have, to award to the lowest

         11  responsible bidder. We've got very stringent

         12  competitive bidding requirements in the City of New

         13  York, and, so, we've got to be sure that we don't do

         14  anything that's inconsistent with that.

         15                 I'd also suggest that this is a

         16  program that we already have underway, and where

         17  there's Energy Star labeling that makes sense, it's

         18  in our interest and we do go ahead and procure, last

         19  year, as I pointed out, $90 million worth of

         20  product.

         21                 The City of New York, last year DCAS

         22  procured close to $700 million, about $670 million

         23  worth of material. If you discount out or net out

         24  those product areas that don't apply here, fuel,

         25  food, motorized equipment, they may have one of
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          2  their energy issues, but not Energy Star ones,

          3  there's maybe some $230 million of material which

          4  might be in this arena of Energy Star compliance.

          5  And close to 40 percent of it we already bought this

          6  past year with Energy Star compliance. So, we have a

          7  pretty robust program, I would submit.

          8                 Are there things we can do more of

          9  and better of? Perhaps. And that's why we're

         10  certainly willing to continue our discussions with

         11  you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         14  Clarke.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair.

         17                 Good afternoon, Commissioner Hirst.

         18                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Councilwoman.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: You raised

         20  some very valid points in the discussion thus far,

         21  and I guess for me, one of my concerns is when we

         22  talk about a requirement for a lowest responsible

         23  bidder, I think that's when perhaps some of our

         24  interpretation comes into place, because if, in

         25  fact, we're talking about energy efficiencies as
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          2  being where the bar is set, then doesn't the

          3  definition of the lowest responsible bidder then

          4  relate to whether, in fact, energy efficiencies

          5  where the bar is set, wouldn't the responsibility of

          6  the lowest bidder be in the arena of energy

          7  efficiency?

          8                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes, it would.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay.

         10                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: And that's what

         11  works, when we have built into a specification,

         12  because it's appropriate to do that, the energy

         13  efficiency.

         14                 This bill is a lot more broad than

         15  that. This bill talks about all products, and so

         16  that's a difficulty.

         17                 But you're absolutely correct, where

         18  you can build it into the specification, or as we

         19  suggested, develop a requirements contract that says

         20  where there's Energy Star product, and it's

         21  appropriate, buy from that contract and therefore

         22  you'll have built in as an element for the lowest

         23  responsible bidder energy efficiency.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And how would

         25  one go about really examining if, in fact, those who
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          2  work for us, or are providing products to us, are,

          3  in fact, exhausting their ability to get the

          4  products that are energy efficient? Do we have the

          5  capacity as an agency or as a City to do that?

          6  Because, you know, we may come up with someone who's

          7  just lazy, and they say, well, we can't find it,

          8  it's not possible to find the product that's needed

          9  to do the job in an energy efficient manner.

         10                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Well, first of

         11  all, there's an awful lot of information, there's a

         12  lot of expertise in this room about that.

         13                 EPA, NYSERDA, NRDC, a whole array of

         14  people, including the government procurement

         15  experts, I would submit the best in the country,

         16  sitting right in this room from DCAS. When it's

         17  built into our specifications, it's because we know

         18  those products exist. And, so, you can't be -- if

         19  you're lazy, and you say it doesn't exist, and we

         20  know it does - you're not meeting the requirements

         21  of the contract and you won't be awarded the

         22  contract by the City of New York. And, you know,

         23  we're a terrific customer, so you're going to want

         24  our business.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: You're welcome.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Dr. Stewart,

          4  anything?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I was just

          6  thinking about some of the other ways we can have

          7  the City save money. Is there a set standard as to

          8  the temperature for the central air? Is there a set

          9  temperature?

         10                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: That's a good

         11  question. I think that there is.

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED PARTICIPANT:

         13  Seventy-eight degrees, thank you. I was going to say

         14  76, but that must be my.

         15                 COMMISSIONER HIRST:  Seventy-eight

         16  degrees. Father's voice in my ear.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And then you

         18  have just one person that's regulating that, and not

         19  everybody who worked in the building can regulate

         20  it?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes, you

         22  typically have the facility manager and his or her

         23  staff regulating it. At One Center Street there's a

         24  computer involved, and they have to recalibrate it

         25  occasionally. But it's a very limited number of
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          2  people, it tends to be the facility manager, and if

          3  it's a building as big as Centre Street, the Chief

          4  Electrician in the building, for obvious reasons.

          5  You can monitor a little bit in any individual

          6  location, but you don't want everybody involved in

          7  setting it.

          8                 Also, a member of my staff pointed

          9  out something else we've done, which I forgot,

         10  although I shouldn't, and that is that the lights at

         11  the municipal building are on timers.

         12                 I shouldn't forget because when I'm

         13  there late at night and I walk out to the lobby,

         14  it's pitch black because the timers have gone off,

         15  but that's appropriate. It means that the lights are

         16  staying on all night.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         18                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: And I should have

         19  mentioned that earlier. So, that's another measure

         20  that's quite simple.

         21                 And a building such as this one,

         22  which is not a City-owned building, then it's the

         23  building management staff that monitors and

         24  calibrates the central air conditioning temperature,

         25  and we can only encourage you as City employee and
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          2  City official tenants to do your part.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I also

          4  believe that fans use much more energy than air

          5  conditioning, and we notice that most of our schools

          6  are without air conditioning, and so they use a lot

          7  of fans, they try to use a lot of fans, as a matter

          8  of fact. And I want to know, is there any way that

          9  we can try to reduce the energy cost by providing

         10  air conditioning instead of using all these fans? In

         11  the long run I think we're going to save more and

         12  make people a lot more comfortable.

         13                 I can't say I'm too familiar with the

         14  array of school buildings, but that could change

         15  shortly, as you know.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And some of

         17  the buildings, like, for example, like some of the

         18  buildings like I note, what is that, 209 Jarolomen

         19  Street, like some of the City buildings --

         20                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Like the Brooklyn

         21  Municipal Building, yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Even the

         23  Building Department. You go in there and a lot of

         24  these places, there is no air conditioning, just

         25  fans.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: One issue there,

          3  you're right about that, I am familiar with that

          4  building, and one of the issues in our older civic

          5  buildings is like many older buildings in the City

          6  of New York, the need to increase expenditure on

          7  infrastructure.

          8                 We have a number of electrical

          9  retrofitting projects, which our agency, DCAS, and

         10  the facilities management area, is undertaking.

         11                 We've been in the process of doing

         12  it, for instance, at One Center Street, and 210

         13  Jarolomen is probably in that mix as well.

         14                 They're old, the infrastructure of

         15  the building needs overhauling, the electrical

         16  systems need substantial upgrades, not just for

         17  HVAC, but also for all the increased computer use in

         18  the buildings.

         19                 So, we have a lot of work to do. Some

         20  of it's underway. There's probably plenty more to

         21  do, and it's always a question of competing

         22  resources. But you're not wrong that in some of the

         23  older buildings we certainly are not energy

         24  efficiency and we don't have central air where we

         25  otherwise might.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Commissioner,

          4  you had mentioned in your statement energy

          5  compliant; does that mean the same as Energy Star

          6  labeled? Can you explain what the difference is if

          7  it's not the same?

          8                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Well, I used it

          9  broadly to refer not only to the Energy Star, but

         10  energy efficiency to the extent that it exists in a

         11  product area that maybe isn't Energy Star'd yet.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         13                 Not knowing what the Administration's

         14  position was prior to coming into this hearing we

         15  prepared some questions, and I'm going to go through

         16  these questions, and if you could just answer them

         17  if you can, and if not, do you know how many

         18  computer terminals the City buys each year, give or

         19  take?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: The numbers of

         21  terminals? No.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What about

         23  copiers?

         24                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Not in terms of

         25  numbers.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 I can give you an idea of the volume

          3  of dollars associated with those.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          5                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Carol, do you

          6  have those available?

          7                 I noted, for instance, last year we

          8  spent, on computers and printers, we spent $72

          9  million on computers and printers. On fax machines

         10  and copiers we spent about $18 million.

         11                 Did you ask about others?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes. If you have

         13  a list, I mean if you can just go down that list or

         14  you can share that with us, I don't believe that's

         15  confidential information, right?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: No, it's not.

         17  Although I should put it in a format that's more

         18  readable for you all, and I'll be glad to do that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Just for

         20  clarification, are you talking about that we buy

         21  those products --

         22                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Or we lease

         24  those products.

         25                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: These are
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          2  purchased. And leased are included here too. We

          3  lease most of our copiers, and that makes sense

          4  because of the service --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Exactly, and

          6  that's the reason I ask. They are leased?

          7                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Purchased and

          8  leased.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But the

         11  computers and printers are purchased?

         12                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm sorry, you

         14  can continue.

         15                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: That's all. I was

         16  just going to add air conditioners, lamps, TVs and

         17  VCRs, which are another $675,000 or so.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

         19                 Maybe you can give us a picture with

         20  the advances in technology over the past ten years,

         21  how would you say has the City's energy consumption

         22  changed, if you can just give your opinion on that?

         23                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Well, we probably

         24  have done more in terms of energy efficiency, but

         25  the expenditure has gone up because we use so many
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          2  more energy-requiring products, largely computers.

          3                 If you just look at the numbers, look

          4  at the City Council staff. I worked in the City

          5  Administration lobbying the City Council as long ago

          6  as 20 years ago, in fact, and there were a handful

          7  of computers that the City Council and its staff

          8  had. And, so, over time, just if you look at your

          9  own body, every one of your district offices, and

         10  your own offices and the central staff of the

         11  Council, certainly the Speaker's Office at City Hall

         12  as a building, between the Council's side of the

         13  building and the Mayor's side of the building, and

         14  the press office, there are probably 100 computers

         15  now, if not more.

         16                 So, in terms of consumption, we

         17  probably consume more.

         18                 If we were consuming with less energy

         19  efficiency, again, that's the question Councilwoman

         20  Lopez asked, and that can be a wonderful question to

         21  be able to have the data about if we were buying

         22  energy inefficient products and needed the same new

         23  volume, what would that number look like

         24  comparatively? Well, our sense is that it would be

         25  far higher, but our energy bills continue to go up.
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          2  They just go up at a slower rate, I'd submit, than

          3  they otherwise would have.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: When we buy

          5  energy compliance or Energy Star products, isn't

          6  there normally a description as to how much you save

          7  as a result of using that piece of equipment,

          8  normally?

          9                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: There is. There

         10  is an estimate, and that just involves a set of

         11  assumptions that may or may not be real.

         12                 The dollar amount that's used to

         13  estimate the cost of the energy to use that product

         14  may have no relationship to the cost in the City of

         15  New York, and that's why I said it may ultimately be

         16  that even using such a product, it may not truly be

         17  your lowest cost product, for whatever reason.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you know what

         19  the average electricity bill is for each mayoral

         20  agency?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: We don't know by

         22  agency. We certainly know by building.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What?

         24                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: By building. By

         25  the buildings that the City of New York manages, we
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          2  know what the energy bills are for each and every

          3  building.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I see.

          5                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: We don't know by

          6  agency. In the Muni building there are, I think 25

          7  different agencies, so do I know what Clerk Robles'

          8  office uses? No, I don't know expressly.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: There's no way

         10  to segregate that out?

         11                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: I don't think we

         12  can do it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         14                 But you said, by the building that

         15  you own you know because in essence you're paying

         16  for electricity for each building?

         17                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes. We know a

         18  lot about -- DCAS manages some 50 City buildings,

         19  the Boroughs Hall, a number of the court buildings,

         20  City Hall, Surrogates Court, a number of buildings.

         21  So, we know a lot about those because it's our staff

         22  that are the facility managers and engineers.

         23                 We also know, we pay the energy bills

         24  for City agencies in all buildings, including in

         25  rented buildings, so we know what the dollar amounts
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          2  are by building. But more specifically by agency, I

          3  don't think we're able to break it out that way.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you know how

          5  much the City spends on paper for printers and

          6  copiers every year?

          7                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Not off the top

          8  of my head. I'd be glad to get that for you.

          9                 Does anybody know offhand? Okay,

         10  they're looking.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, okay.

         12                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Less, now that we

         13  developed a program to do two-sided copying on our

         14  copy machines.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that sort of

         16  like the policy now, that you're trying to

         17  communicate with everyone?

         18                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes. And it was

         19  as simple as ensuring that the default was -- it

         20  used to be you'd get one side of them unless you

         21  actively changed the machine to two sided.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

         23                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: And then we

         24  required the reverse, that your two-sided is the

         25  norm. You would have to change the machine to do
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          2  single-sided copy. It's a simple thing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Margarita.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just have to

          5  go to another meeting I have, and I will be back

          6  here, but before I leave, in the case of the

          7  leasing, that will not be a problem, because when

          8  you lease equipment, from whoever you leased the

          9  equipment, whoever is buying the equipment is the

         10  company that you lease from. Therefore, to make

         11  clear that under the regulations of this City, only

         12  products that are energy efficiency can be lessee by

         13  the City of New York.

         14                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Because in that

         16  case it would not represent a problem at all?

         17                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Correct?

         19                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then I think

         21  that that's something that we should look into it in

         22  the legislation that we are proposing.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Commissioner,

         25  with respect to the office equipment currently owned
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          2  by the City, do you have any idea of what percentage

          3  of equipment owned by the City is Energy Star

          4  labeled.

          5                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: We know the

          6  previous years' purchases. It's certainly difficult

          7  to compile it for the past ten years, and also we

          8  can tell you in particular categories. I don't know

          9  broadly. Office equipment is kind of a broad

         10  category.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I think you said

         12  in your statement that there are approximately ten

         13  contracts that the City has for energy, I think you

         14  said Energy Star products; is that correct?

         15                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: That's right.

         16  Three are photocopiers, four contracts for fax

         17  machines, a television and VCR contract, a window

         18  air conditioner contract and a lamp contract. The

         19  total is ten.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And those

         21  contracts, as part of the requirement, I assume that

         22  you had in there, that they had to be either Energy

         23  Star, or energy compliant?

         24                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: That's correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that correct?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I'll make

          4  the assumption, based on the statement that you made

          5  in your testimony, that when you put out, what is

          6  it, the RFP?

          7                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: These are sealed

          8  bids.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sealed bids?

         10                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: There's more

         12  than one I guess manufacturer that deals with those

         13  products that are Energy Star, energy compliant?

         14                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Right.

         15                 Where we'd be troubled, as we noted,

         16  is where there wouldn't be --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Can you give me

         18  a specific example of one that is not, that you or

         19  one of your staff members can cite?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Our water

         21  coolers, as an example. There's only one, to our

         22  knowledge, manufacture on water coolers that's an

         23  Energy Star labeled product. Addico (phonetic) I

         24  think is the name. So, there's a good example where

         25  there's no competition, and that's a troubling thing
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          2  to the City of New York.

          3                 So, in that instance, as a program

          4  matter, as a policy matter for us, we would wait

          5  until there were more products, more water coolers

          6  that were Energy Star compliant, and when we knew

          7  there was some competition, we would be able to

          8  build that into our specification for water coolers

          9  and know that we could then get an Energy Star

         10  product and the leased cost product to us.

         11                 If there's only one product, we have

         12  a competition problem and we're back to the

         13  procurement issues that I raised.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, when you

         15  run into that situation, as this example as you

         16  cited, do you then communicate with the contractors,

         17  for example, that you're looking for, Energy Star,

         18  or energy compliant equipment? I mean, so that, in

         19  essence, you're communicating what your wishes are

         20  to the industry? So, if I make water coolers, and I

         21  know that you're looking for that, and I know that I

         22  would love to get, if possible, the contract with

         23  the City, I may look at making these energy

         24  compliant or Energy Star water coolers, for example,

         25  in order to fulfill the requirements of the City,
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          2  even though it's not a requirement at this time,

          3  because as you indicated, there is only one

          4  manufacturer, Energy Star water coolers?

          5                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you

          7  communicate with the contractors that that's what

          8  you're looking for as an ideal situation?

          9                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Go ahead,

         10  Virginia.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sorry, go ahead.

         12  Can you just identify yourself again.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS: Yes. I'm

         14  Virginia Ross. I'm the Deputy Commissioner of

         15  Municipal Supply Services for DCAS.

         16                 If you look into the website for

         17  Energy Star, and they have a very nice website with

         18  lots of products listed, we will go through that

         19  site and look for what's available and make a

         20  determination. If there suddenly come five products

         21  online with multiple manufacturers, and it's

         22  something that we might not -- it's usually

         23  something we'd buy a fair amount of, like water

         24  coolers, it would be nice to have multiple vendors

         25  that we could do that.
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          2                 We don't really push the industry. I

          3  think Energy Star is something that the State of New

          4  York has been working on, the federal government,

          5  people are more and more aware of it. But if a

          6  pencil sharpener suddenly came out and they were

          7  Energy Star compliant, that would be something that

          8  would be relatively easy for us to move to.

          9                 A lot of the products on the list are

         10  for the home market. So you're going to find a lot

         11  more things that people can use in their home than

         12  you would really use in a business or to make large

         13  purchases with.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm just going

         15  to stay on that subject of water coolers for a

         16  minute, if you don't mind.

         17                 Do you know, for example, how many

         18  water coolers either that you purchased or rent

         19  overall? You know, I'm not trying to hold you to the

         20  number, but let's say 10,000, I mean, if I'm the

         21  manufacturer, I may have an interest in moving

         22  toward what your ideal situation is, and that's why

         23  I was asking whether or not there is any proactivity

         24  on the behalf of DCAS in order to communicate what

         25  your ideal needs are, rather than just going to the
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          2  website to see what is Energy Star, that's all.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS: What we

          4  could do is tell you how many water coolers. I mean,

          5  I know a lot of our water coolers are old.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS: So, you

          8  know, probably the one you use, so we've had them

          9  for awhile. But we can let you know on an annual

         10  basis how many water coolers we buy.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I was just

         12  using that, since we were just focusing on a one

         13  example where there is, you know, not -- because if

         14  I'm an industry guy and you're purchasing 10,000

         15  water coolers, you know, that's a big market.

         16                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: This is a kind of

         17  a dance that we've talked about over the years in

         18  this Council about in a number of different ways,

         19  the issue of, I call it the kind of field of dreams

         20  notion that if you identify a need the market will

         21  come to you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The dollar and

         23  the dream.

         24                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

         25                 It's not our experience that that's
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          2  so. We have examples in the recycled product arena,

          3  we have examples in the recyled product arena, we

          4  have examples in alternately fueled vehicles that

          5  directing something isn't always the case that the

          6  product line will follow.

          7                 So, we try to do it, as Virginia

          8  noted, kind of inch-by-inch, when the products

          9  exist. We move toward that. Because you're right,

         10  we're a substantial customer. But it isn't the case

         11  that we absolutely get to shape the market.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well,

         13  Commissioner, I thank you for coming to give

         14  testimony today, and I appreciate everything that

         15  you're doing with your staff in order to move

         16  forward and using Energy Star equipment and/or

         17  energy compliant equipment.

         18                 Let me just give you one little --

         19  before I went to, I left Thursday, July 4th, for

         20  Virginia via Pennsylvania, and before we left, we

         21  turned off the surge protector for the living room

         22  for the TV, the VCR and the cable box and all of the

         23  clocks in the house and what have you, and the only

         24  thing I think we didn't disconnect was the

         25  microwave, we should have done that. But the
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          2  refrigerator was on and all the clocks and

          3  everything, we just unplugged them for three or four

          4  days in which we were gone. So, hopefully we saved a

          5  brownout somewhere, or saved a couple of dollars

          6  somewhere in our pockets. And I do think it's very,

          7  very important that we try to conserve and use

          8  Energy Star, energy compliant equipment. Even

          9  sometimes if it may cost a little bit more

         10  initially, the lowest responsible bid, I mean when

         11  you look at that, I look at that, you know, going

         12  out, shopping for a home air conditioner, if it says

         13  that, you know, when you read up on what you should

         14  buy, as far as how much money you're going to spend

         15  on electricity, to me that equates to the cost

         16  factor overall in doing business to have that air

         17  conditioner in my home. And, so, by not looking at

         18  that is not responsible. So, I know that the DCAS is

         19  looking at energy cost as a responsible measure in

         20  determining whether or not we're going to purchase

         21  something in that; is that correct?

         22                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: That certainly is

         23  correct.

         24                 What's not correct, though, is that

         25  that same provision is in the general municipal law.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  So, the competitive bid requirements that govern our

          3  purchase of City goods happily for us doesn't govern

          4  the kinds of personal choices we can make in our

          5  homes, but we are bound by --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But it does say

          7  responsible, doesn't it?

          8                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes, but there

          9  are definitions of responsibility and they don't so

         10  far include energy sufficiency.

         11                 That said, of course, we have a very

         12  robust program in place. So, I think we're doing it

         13  irrespective of that consideration. We're certainly

         14  moving in that direction because it makes sense to

         15  do that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I know

         17  that you are, and I appreciate it.

         18                 I just hope that the interpretation

         19  of responsible is pretty broad with respects to, you

         20  know, saving money for the City and purchasing that

         21  piece of equipment and the use of that equipment,

         22  and not -- what do you call it - penny wise, pound

         23  foolish? So, that's all.

         24                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         25                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You're welcome.

          4                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Thank you for

          5  your time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next we're going

          7  to hear from Rick Gerardi, NYSERDA.

          8                 Is Rick here?

          9                 MR. GERARDI: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Hey, Rick. How

         11  are you doing?

         12                 MR. GERARDI: Great.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         14  Commissioner.

         15                 MR. NEWMAN: Could you please raise

         16  your right hand?

         17                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

         18  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         19  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         20                 MR. GERARDI: I do.

         21                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your name

         22  and affiliation for the record.

         23                 MR. GERARDI: My name is Rick Gerardi.

         24  I'm the Director of Residential Energy Affordability

         25  Programs for the New York State Energy Research and
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          2  Development Authority.

          3                 Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and

          4  members of the Committee.

          5                 As I said, my name is Rick Gerardi,

          6  I'm Director of Residential and Energy Affordability

          7  Programs for the New York State Energy Research and

          8  Development Authority.

          9                 On behalf of William Flynn, the

         10  President of NYSERDA, and it's Board of Directors,

         11  I'm pleased to provide testimony today regarding

         12  this proposal to amend the Administrative Code of

         13  New York City to promote the procurement of

         14  energy-efficient products.

         15                 We want to commend the City Council

         16  for taking this important step in ensuring that

         17  smart responsible choices are made when purchasing a

         18  wide variety of equipment.

         19                 Government at the federal, state and

         20  local level have a responsibility to lead by example

         21  and here again New York City's leadership is clear.

         22                 As you know, Energy Star is sponsored

         23  by the United States Environmental Protection

         24  Agency, and the United States Department of Energy.

         25  Purchasing Energy Star-labeled products ensures that
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          2  these products meet or exceed energy efficiency

          3  guidelines set by the EPA and DOE, and are among the

          4  most energy efficient available.

          5                 NYSERDA has adopted the Energy Star

          6  platform as a convenient and dependable way to help

          7  New York consumers and purchasing agents identify

          8  and buy the most energy efficient products and

          9  services.

         10                 For example, our wildly successful

         11  "Keep Cool" effort, which gives a consumer a $75

         12  bounty on the trade-in of an old inefficient air

         13  conditioner, when they buy a new Energy Star model,

         14  is a component of NYSERDA's comprehensive effort to

         15  reduce electric peak demand this summer in this City

         16  and across the State.

         17                 A little more than a year ago

         18  Governor Pataki signed Executive Order No. 111 for

         19  "Green and Clean" State Buildings and Vehicles on

         20  June 10, 2001, which is in important ways a parallel

         21  to this legislation.

         22                 This is the most aggressive directive

         23  ever issued to address energy use and environmental

         24  issues through government procurement standards and

         25  design practices.
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          2                 New York State has long been a leader

          3  in creating a coordinated long-term energy policy.

          4  Among other actions directed at State agencies and

          5  other affected entities, to select Energy Star,

          6  energy-efficient products when acquiring new energy

          7  using products or replacing existing equipment.

          8                 For those products that are not

          9  Energy Star rated, State agencies and authorities

         10  are directed to use the federal Energy Management

         11  Program Purchasing Manual to determine energy

         12  efficiency levels.

         13                 It also required NYSERDA to adopt

         14  guidelines designating target efficiency levels for

         15  those products which Energy Star labels are not

         16  available.

         17                 NYSERDA will be promulgating these

         18  guidelines for an initial group of equipment, and we

         19  would be pleased to share these guidelines with New

         20  York City and thereby add a significant purchasing

         21  power to transform the market towards energy

         22  efficiency.

         23                 We wish to point out one change in

         24  language which you may wish to consider to ensure

         25  compliance at the agency level. In the proposed
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          2  Section 6-127.a.(1) b and c, the phrase "whenever

          3  the price is reasonably competitive..." May be too

          4  open to interpretation and may provide an unintended

          5  out for purchasing agents.

          6                 Energy Star and other efficient

          7  products which may have a higher first cost will

          8  always cost less over the life of the product due to

          9  energy savings. NYSERDA urges New York City agencies

         10  to consider the life-cycle cost of a product in

         11  determining whether the price of Energy Star

         12  products is competitive with less energy efficient

         13  but initially cheaper alternative. Including the

         14  operational cost of a piece of equipment provides

         15  the only accurate measure of true cost to own and

         16  operate the equipment.

         17                 And we would argue very forcefully

         18  that that would, in fact, fall under the responsible

         19  portion of the procurement requirement.

         20                 This concept of understanding the

         21  life cycle affordability through energy efficiency

         22  applies also to buildings and we have been working

         23  extensively in the City to increase energy

         24  efficiency.

         25                 We want to praise and say that the
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          2  New York City Department of Housing Preservation and

          3  Development has been especially helpful and

          4  cooperative with NYSERDA in our Assisted

          5  Multi-Family Program. HPD promotes quality housing

          6  and viable neighborhoods for all New Yorkers by

          7  catalyzing private sector investment and economic

          8  integration of communities. Making the energy use in

          9  that housing affordable is at the core of NYSERDA's

         10  mission.

         11                 In our Assisted Multi-Family Program,

         12  we work with many federal, state, local and

         13  regulatory agencies to leverage funds and resources

         14  to make housing improvements that would not

         15  otherwise be possible for each organization working

         16  alone.

         17                 The AMP provides energy assessments

         18  and financial packaging services for publicly

         19  assisted buildings, and can significantly enhance

         20  the fiscal viability of these buildings.

         21                 Of all the buildings in our AMP

         22  pipeline, 26 percent of them are HPD buildings.

         23                 We have begun to investigate ways of

         24  delegating responsibility of these services to other

         25  organizations to impact more buildings quickly and
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          2  HPD was our first choice.

          3                 Their dedicated and knowledgeable

          4  staff are anxious and willing to learn how they can

          5  improve the quality of the building stock, make them

          6  more affordable, while at the same time lower energy

          7  use in the City.

          8                 This will, in the long run, improve

          9  the health, safety and comfort of the buildings,

         10  lower overall housing costs, and have a greater

         11  positive impact on City neighborhoods.

         12                 We have also worked with HPD to

         13  develop new specifications for HPD buildings to make

         14  them more energy efficient.

         15                 HPD staff provided background

         16  information and building expertise in this effort,

         17  and provided important review of specifications

         18  during development.

         19                 Implementation of these

         20  specifications will further increase the

         21  affordability of these new housing units, while at

         22  the same time reducing the environmental impacts

         23  associated with the production of energy.

         24                 NYSERDA strongly supports the passage

         25  of this legislation and pledges its support as New
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          2  York City develops mechanisms for its

          3  implementation.

          4                 We look forward to working with the

          5  City of New York to continue our combined efforts to

          6  promote the efficient and environmentally

          7  responsible use of energy.

          8                 We will work with the Department of

          9  the Citywide Administrative Services to get them the

         10  cost benefit analyses on energy efficient and Energy

         11  Star products that they discussed today. These are

         12  available. NYSERDA has a full body of information

         13  about the cost benefit of these services and

         14  products.

         15                 If you have any questions, please

         16  contact our New York City regional office Economic

         17  Development Manager, Joe Littmann, who is here with

         18  me today.

         19                 Joe, if you'll just raise your hand.

         20                 Or you can actually call me in

         21  Albany, I'd be very pleased to work personally on

         22  this initiative to make sure we get this through and

         23  that it be implemented properly in the City.

         24                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         25  testify, and congratulations on this Smart
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          2  initiative.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          4                 Did you travel down from Albany

          5  today?

          6                 MR. GERARDI: I sure did, yes. I took

          7  the 6:55 train.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thanks for

          9  coming.

         10                 MR. GERARDI: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We appreciate

         12  you coming down on this important issue.

         13                 The floor is open for comments.

         14                 I'm going to have a couple of

         15  questions, if you don't mind.

         16                 MR. GERARDI: Sure.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Specifically as

         18  it relates to electricity and electric products, how

         19  much energy do energy-efficient products,

         20  particularly Energy Star-labeled products, conserve

         21  on average?

         22                 MR. GERARDI: On average it's -- the

         23  standard is usually 30 percent. It ranges from

         24  anywhere from 20 to 50 percent based on the product

         25  type.
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          2                 And the reason for that difference

          3  is, Energy Star is one of these programs that

          4  emerged out of the US government, which is

          5  ultimately a market-based program. It's a voluntary

          6  program. And that what we're always trying to do in

          7  supporting Energy Star is understand the marketplace

          8  and the consumer drive toward these products.

          9                 Remember that the ultimate success of

         10  Energy Star is that it's recognized by consumers and

         11  used.

         12                 If I might just give you a little

         13  example about our Keep Cool program?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sure.

         15                 MR. GERARDI: Keep Cool is an

         16  initiative by New York State, implemented by New

         17  York State Energy and Research Development

         18  Authority, along with NYPA, New York Power

         19  Authority, and Long Island Power Authority, so it's

         20  truly a statewide initiative, whereby we try to

         21  impact the behavior of consumers to use energy use

         22  away from peak periods.

         23                 We also looked at the key impact

         24  point on energy peak and it was air conditioning

         25  clearly in the City. So, what we did is devised a
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          2  program that would give a $75 bounty to consumers if

          3  they brought in an old working air conditioner, and

          4  bought an Energy Star compliant model. The first

          5  year we did that it was the coolest summer on

          6  record, and there were 700 air conditioners traded

          7  in that first year. It's a number that we basically

          8  did not share readily with the public.

          9                 The next year, which was last year,

         10  we actually had a real hot May and we had some hot

         11  periods in June, and to our surprise it took off and

         12  we ended up with 40,000 air conditioners traded in.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Forty thousand?

         14                 MR. GERARDI: Forty thousand.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Wow.

         16                 MR. GERARDI: We are now in the first

         17  week in July, we have 60,000 air conditioners that

         18  have been traded in, and over 120,000 Energy Star

         19  products turned in.

         20                 The net result of this is not just on

         21  its impact on peak, it's on its impact on retailers,

         22  on how they stock products. It's on impact on

         23  manufacturers and what products they produce.

         24                 What we have found is -- are you all

         25  familiar with PC Richards, which believe it or not,
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          2  is the largest seller of room air conditioners in

          3  the country, PC Richards last year complained about

          4  our program because he ran out of Energy Star

          5  product to sell.

          6                 He went from six percent of his

          7  inventory Energy Star to 60 percent of his inventory

          8  Energy Star this year.

          9                 The impact of a major buyer like that

         10  on manufacturers is enormous. Manufacturers then

         11  responded by manufacturing more air conditioners.

         12  This is a real story that's contemporaneous.

         13                 The end of the story is we believe

         14  that there are over 100,000 air conditioners turned

         15  in old, inefficient air conditioners traded in,

         16  which by the way, find themself (sic) onto the

         17  secondary market if they're not disposed of, they

         18  find their way into low-income neighborhoods and

         19  second-hand shops, where energy then is being

         20  consumed by the people that can least afford it. So,

         21  what we've done is to, we touched a nerve here, the

         22  consuming public has responded in large numbers,

         23  retailers are a vibrant and enthusiastic participant

         24  in the program, the manufacturers who we had a co-op

         25  advertising program with to advertise the program,
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          2  do not even submit reimbursement to us for their

          3  co-ops, because they're making so much more money on

          4  Energy Star products. This is a true success story.

          5                 So, in terms of the City, I agree

          6  with the previous commissioner who said that the

          7  City alone can't drive a market. But what the State

          8  and City can do is to get on the wagon and to make

          9  sure that we're supporting the market in as many

         10  ways as we can, and supporting Energy Star.

         11                 The good news here is that we found

         12  that because of the success of our Energy Star

         13  program, New York State has much greater impact, for

         14  instance, with the feds on the levels they set, on

         15  when the bar gets raised and when these products are

         16  ready to basically go to a higher level.

         17                 I would suggest including New York

         18  City in that purchasing and procurement and going

         19  together with New York State to not only the feds,

         20  but to the manufacturers, with regard to energy

         21  efficiency and Energy Star products, will have even

         22  a greater impact if we can get the City on board on

         23  this.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Going back to

         25  when I asked the Commissioner whether or not they
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          2  were being proactive and communicating what their

          3  ideal requirements were, you know, we're talking

          4  about the water coolers, so, I'm hearing from you,

          5  you believe that the City should be proactive in

          6  communicating what it really needs?

          7                 MR. GERARDI: Yes. The dilemma for

          8  procurement agents is real, that on something where

          9  there's only one product available. But the way we

         10  would handle that is you would take a look at the

         11  energy efficiency ratings of other products and not

         12  necessarily tie your procurement just to the Energy

         13  Star label in those instances, but to set an energy

         14  efficient standard that would include more products

         15  in that category so that you did have competition

         16  but you were still maintaining some level of

         17  efficacy for the energy efficiency public benefit.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I see.

         19                 Let me talk about my air conditioning

         20  in my home for a second.

         21                 I have a Fredericks 14,000 in my

         22  living room that I've had for maybe like 14 years.

         23  You know, that's not Energy Star. So, if I turn that

         24  in I can get $75?

         25                 MR. GERARDI: You get $75, and if you
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          2  bought a 14,000 btu, I could pretty much give you

          3  some confident information here. If you bought a

          4  14,000 btu replacement, you would use half of the

          5  energy that your current -- and probably be better

          6  cooled.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Half the energy.

          8                 MR. GERARDI: Half.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And where would

         10  I get that $75 from?

         11                 MR. GERARDI: Virtually every retailer

         12  in the City has point of purchase displays and

         13  applications for involvement in the program, and

         14  quite frankly it's our retail partners that have

         15  really made this thing work this year. They've been

         16  enthusiastic. This is a win/win all the way. It has

         17  been great. It's actually increased the number of

         18  air conditioners. We're assuring that they're energy

         19  efficient air conditioners, and that we're getting

         20  rid of a lot of old inefficient air conditioners at

         21  the same time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And who pays for

         23  this program?

         24                 MR. GERARDI: The program is funded

         25  through what we call our New York Energy Smart
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          2  Program, which is a program that Governor Pataki

          3  instituted through the systems benefit charge.

          4                 Systems benefit charge is actually a

          5  charge in each of your electric bills.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Ah-ha.

          7                 MR. GERARDI: No, what we do is we say

          8  go look. Go look at that electrical bill. It's

          9  somewhere about a buck twenty-five a month that

         10  you're paying towards that fund. All you have to do

         11  is take advantage of one of these programs.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It pays for

         13  itself?

         14                 MR. GERARDI: Well, it will 100 times

         15  over pay for itself. So, it's about 15 bucks a year

         16  and you'll save that in the first month on your

         17  energy bill if you participate, so it's a real good

         18  use. And by the way, I should note that the SPC is a

         19  pool of funds that was prior to its institution, was

         20  equal to the amount of money that utility companies

         21  were spending individually on energy efficiency

         22  programs, but didn't have the scope nor the depth of

         23  the programs that we're running right now at

         24  NYSERDA.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Can you give me
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          2  an estimate of how much the City of New York, with

          3  compliance with the law, this law, translate into

          4  dollar savings, given the City's electricity usage;

          5  how much do you think that the City overall --

          6                 MR. GERARDI: We actually tried to get

          7  a handle on that prior to legislation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          9                 MR. GERARDI: And we weren't able to

         10  in the time that it was available, but we'd be

         11  pleased to work with DCAS and actually get

         12  information about the amounts of products that are

         13  purchased, and we can actually very simply translate

         14  not only the energy efficiency in dollar savings

         15  benefits, but also the environmental benefits for

         16  lowered emissions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I believe

         18  based on what the Commissioner said, I mean they're

         19  moving in that direction, maybe not as aggressively

         20  as some people would like, but it clearly, you know,

         21  they're moving in that direction.

         22                 MR. GERARDI: Absolutely. First of

         23  all, we want to praise the City.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

         25                 MR. GERARDI: The City agencies that
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          2  we worked with, the one that I have worked the most

          3  with has been HPD, have been great over the last

          4  couple of years, and that wasn't always the case, I

          5  gotta tell ya. We have had great levels of

          6  cooperation from them. And I think once the facts

          7  are on the table, and the City understands the

          8  magnitude of our effort in working not just with

          9  procurement agents, but with manufacturers and

         10  retailers on the educational end to make sure that

         11  the users of energy understand the implications of

         12  their behavior, that we'll all be on the same page

         13  here.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Does NYSERDA

         15  have a position on how important is this

         16  conservation effort in terms of peak electricity

         17  usage, such as, you know, now and during the summer?

         18                 MR. GERARDI: This is critical. The

         19  one thing you learn if you're in this business is

         20  just how a kilowatt hour can change in price.

         21                 We had in peak times last year, the

         22  cost per kilowatt hour, which averages for a

         23  residential customer, somewhere between -- if it was

         24  statewide, say around 15 cents, average last year

         25  around 25 cents for residential customers and Con
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          2  Ed. But that during the night when energy is

          3  abundant, it's really cost, it's commodity cost is

          4  around two cents.

          5                 At peak, that same kilowatt hour

          6  costs about a dollar. And what we do by taking

          7  demand off the system is we actually lower the cost

          8  for everybody, because the cost goes up as the

          9  demand grows at peak. So, as you reduce peak, you

         10  actually lower the cost for everybody, and that's

         11  really what our mission is here.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, I'm a

         13  layperson, even when it talks about these bulbs to

         14  use, do energy efficient products cost more than

         15  less efficient ones? And where is the trade-off, if

         16  at all?

         17                 MR. GERARDI: Yes, that actually

         18  varies by product. If you take a look at TVs, VCRs,

         19  there's virtually no difference in price, between an

         20  Energy Star product and a non-Energy Star compliant

         21  product.

         22                 With regard to things like air

         23  conditioners, there was a premium for an Energy Star

         24  air conditioner because the technology is, quite

         25  frankly, newer and better, so that it extends to the
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          2  maintenance of the product and also the length of

          3  the viable use of the product.

          4                 But what we've seen, and one of the

          5  great things that occurs when we have a dynamic

          6  that's occurring this year, is we're seeing that the

          7  price of all of those Energy Star air conditioners

          8  are now coming down to be at or below the price of

          9  non-complying models.

         10                 Why? Because they're ordering so many

         11  more of them. And that's what this is a function of,

         12  and that's why if we can get big purchasers together

         13  and on the same page, we can actually at the same

         14  time that we're saving energy, drive the price of

         15  the products down because more of them were

         16  available in the marketplace, and it's just you're

         17  dealing with numbers that will drive the price down.

         18                 There are other products, you know,

         19  and we deal with -- there are Energy Star homes, for

         20  instance. We found, we just did a survey, the

         21  average cost, increase in cost of an Energy Star

         22  home is between two and five percent. But we found

         23  that changing things around, like downsizing a

         24  heating system, and a cooling system, because you

         25  need the building much more efficient, you can
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          2  actually capture dollar savings in that downsizing

          3  so that there is virtually no difference.

          4                 So, these are all things that we're

          5  learning.

          6                 The one thing I wanted to stress was,

          7  although energy efficiency has been around for quite

          8  awhile, and, you know, some of us true believers

          9  have been pushing for it, we have a window of

         10  opportunity here, mainly because the price and the

         11  volatility of energy cost is going up, and that the

         12  bottom line is that the public is ready, and there

         13  were times in the past where the public just was not

         14  ready, but we think we have a window of opportunity

         15  here that extends beyond the dollar savings to the

         16  environmental stewardship and the net impact of

         17  things like peak demand on the entire system, which

         18  is not just the generators, it's also the

         19  distribution system, as happened in Washington

         20  Heights a year and a half ago.

         21                 So, we think that the time is right

         22  for us to make these commitments and to really push

         23  the market to make sure that these products are

         24  available in the light scale.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And does NYSERDA
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          2  have an opinion as to are energy efficient products

          3  widely used by residents and businesses in New York

          4  City, compared to other parts of the state?

          5                 MR. GERARDI: Well, the one thing I

          6  will tell you is the metrics, which we're constantly

          7  in the process of evaluating, that is we very

          8  closely look at the cost benefit of these things -

          9  we have a responsibility, we're using ratepayer

         10  dollars. The metrics of energy efficiency in New

         11  York City is always greater, because the cost per

         12  kilowatt hour is greater. So, the savings are

         13  greater and the product increases aren't

         14  proportionate.

         15                 So, you actually end up in a

         16  situation where you have a PC Richards whose selling

         17  hundreds of thousands of air conditioners, and

         18  because of that is actually selling air

         19  conditioners, Energy Star air conditioners for less

         20  than upstate, in an area where the energy savings in

         21  dollar terms is greater than upstate, so that the

         22  cost benefit on things like that end up being much

         23  better in New York City, not worse.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you think

         25  that an initiative like this sends a message that
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          2  might have an impact on buying patterns for

          3  businesses and residential power users?

          4                 MR. GERARDI: Absolutely. There is a

          5  side to this that goes beyond just the kind of

          6  setting of technical specifications. I would suggest

          7  that we use the bully pulpit that's available to us,

          8  you, as City Council members, the Mayor, the

          9  Governor, in promoting energy efficiency. It is

         10  great.

         11                 This is an important issue for an

         12  energy importing state and city like New York. We

         13  don't have oil fields, we don't have gas fields, we

         14  are energy inputting state art. We can in fact

         15  create businesses and really enhance the quality of

         16  life in our areas by encouraging energy efficiency.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, you mean,

         18  for example, so with my 15-year-old air conditioner

         19  in my living room, that I should take that into PC

         20  Richards.

         21                 MR. GERARDI: You can take it to

         22  Sears, PC Richards, virtually any small retailer. I

         23  would suggest you go to our website, which is Get

         24  Energy Smart.org, and there is a Keep Cool section

         25  of that website where you can click on it and find a
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          2  participating retailer closest to your house.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go to J and R.

          4  Because you know, going back at that time, I spent

          5  around $800 for that 14,000 btu.

          6                 MR. GERARDI: And a lot of that money

          7  went across the State border, either went to other

          8  states or went to a foreign country. The beauty of

          9  the $400 or so that you'll save, is that that stays

         10  in your pocket, stays in the community, you're going

         11  to buy other things with that, and when you multiply

         12  that over the hundreds of thousands of people that

         13  are going to be impacted by this, it has a big

         14  economic effect.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I would

         16  like to thank you for coming down from Albany.

         17                 MR. GERARDI: Thank you very much. I

         18  really appreciate the opportunity to testify.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         20                 Next we will hear from Edward Linky,

         21  from USEPA.

         22                 Is Edward here?

         23                 MR. LINKY: Yes.

         24                 MR. NEWMAN: Would you raise your

         25  right hand.
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          2                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

          3  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

          4  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          5                 MR. LINKY: I do.

          6                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your name

          7  and affiliation for the record.

          8                 MR. LINKY: My name is Edward J.

          9  Linky. I work for the United States Environmental

         10  Protection Agency, Region 2, here in New York City.

         11                 Good afternoon, Committee chairs, and

         12  members of the Council. I am Ed Linky, Pollution

         13  Prevention Team Leader of EPA's Region 2, and the

         14  Regional Energy Star Program representative.

         15                 We have become aware of a proposed

         16  amendment to the City Administrative Code which

         17  would promote the procurement of Energy Star-labeled

         18  equipment by the City.

         19                 We believe if the City moves toward

         20  promotion of the Energy Star-labeled equipment, it

         21  will help advance EPA's goal of over time achieving

         22  better air quality, and providing electricity in a

         23  more efficient form and at a lower cost.

         24                 In the packets which have been

         25  provided to you is a booklet entitled EPA, the Power
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          2  of Partnerships. Descriptions of the Energy Star

          3  Program and other partnerships can be found. Energy

          4  Star, as you are probably aware, is a joint effort

          5  of the United States Department of Energy, and the

          6  United States Environmental Protection Agency.

          7                 The Energy Star Product Labeling

          8  Program is one part of a multifaceted Energy Star

          9  approach to energy efficiency, which extends to

         10  public and private buildings as well as equipment

         11  and appliances.

         12                 The Energy Star Product Labeling

         13  Program extends now to 13,000 different types of

         14  products from 1,100 manufacturers. The Commissioner

         15  cited 11,000 products, and I checked with Washington

         16  this morning, because that was figure the figure

         17  that was in my head, and essentially week-by-week

         18  the product range grows. So, maybe the water coolers

         19  are in that.

         20                 With your kind indulgence, I think

         21  I'll spare all of us the opportunity of not citing

         22  those 13,000 products at this point in time.

         23                 In any event, the 13,000 different

         24  product types from the 1,100 manufactures cover

         25  everything from building materials, commercial
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          2  heating and cooling equipment, and, of course, the

          3  first and very successful Office Products Program,

          4  which encompasses personal computers, photocopying

          5  equipment, faxes and modems.

          6                 It's important to recognize the

          7  Energy Star Labeling Program as grounded in solid

          8  achievement in energy efficiency. However, it is a

          9  totally market-based voluntary program with

         10  manufacturers and distributors of these products.

         11                 On a personal note, I've had nearly

         12  30 years of experience with energy efficiency

         13  programs, with the State Government of New Jersey

         14  and at EPA.

         15                 I've helped create Energy Star

         16  Programs in the Caribbean Basin, Central America,

         17  Taiwan and Hong Kong.

         18                 The power of the Energy Star label is

         19  significant now around the world with respect to

         20  office products. The value of the Energy Star label

         21  is now so strong internationally that if

         22  non-conforming products are brought to our

         23  attention, and we, in turn, notify the

         24  manufacturers, they immediately take action to solve

         25  the problem.
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          2                 Energy Star is now the international

          3  standard for energy efficiency in office products.

          4                 In New York State, I'm pleased to

          5  note that the New York State Energy Research and

          6  Development Authority is a very active promoter of

          7  Energy Star labeled products.

          8                 Their participation is one of

          9  national leadership, and on page 13 of the enclosed

         10  booklet, you'll find an insert celebrating NYSERDA's

         11  accomplishments.

         12                 In addition, the New York Power

         13  Authority and the Long Island Power Authority are

         14  active promoters of the Energy Star products, most

         15  notably the residential air conditioning units.

         16                 I live in New Jersey and during this

         17  time of the year I see on TV the Power Save

         18  commercials where this guy is hooking up his

         19  Christmas lights and the Smart Save stuff, and I

         20  must tell you that in this particular mode, this is

         21  the equivalent of the I Love New York promotion.

         22  I've never seen a commercial or a PSA get it so

         23  right, right on the money. So, whoever did that,

         24  look em up and give em a bonus.

         25                 The Energy Star label and associated
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          2  programs grew out of the successful Green Light

          3  Program in the early 1990s. Energy Star is a label

          4  and comprehensive approach by USDOE and EPA to

          5  energy efficiency and pollution prevention and is

          6  about six years old. If you look on page 11 of the

          7  booklet, you'll find a comparison of the various

          8  types of programs we have on a national basis about

          9  energy saved and pollution avoided.

         10                 In that time frame, Energy Star has

         11  created an international standard of energy

         12  efficiency for office products, and is well on its

         13  way toward US national standard approach to

         14  commercial and industrial real estate through its

         15  energy star benchmarking program and building

         16  labeling program.

         17                 We're in this program for the long

         18  haul. Our ultimate goal is to build a brand

         19  identification with the public which Energy Star

         20  programs and products will ensure the most efficient

         21  and environmentally advanced products in the market.

         22                 The City Council's promotion of

         23  Energy Star will substantially help toward meeting

         24  this goal.

         25                 Thank you for this opportunity to
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          2  describe the Energy Star Programs.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. And I

          4  appreciate the little magnets here.

          5                 MR. LINKY: They're energy efficient.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

          7                 It says here EPA DOE; what's DOE?

          8                 MR. LINKY: That's the Department of

          9  Energy.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         11                 MR. LINKY: I must tell you, I worked

         12  for the Public Utility Commission when Mrs. Whitman

         13  was the Chairman back in the early nineties, and

         14  over time, having come to EPA, what I found is that

         15  this is one of those things where EPA had the Green

         16  Lights part of the program, and Buildings part of

         17  the program, and DOE over time had the developing

         18  standards for appliances and all the equipment. And

         19  essentially when they developed the Energy Star

         20  label, several administrations now have said you two

         21  guys are going to work together. So, the Energy Star

         22  label is one of those rare efforts where the Army

         23  and Navy worked together toward a common goal. So,

         24  that's how DOE and EPA came to be on that label, and

         25  I'm very pleased that it's worked that way.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            81

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, you were

          3  here since the beginning of the hearing?

          4                 MR. LINKY: That's correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And you heard

          6  the testimony of the Commissioner and the prior

          7  person that spoke, do you have any comments as far

          8  as any of the testimony that had been given? Do you

          9  have any opinions as to the City's procurement of

         10  Energy Star equipment and whether or not they're

         11  moving in the right direction as quickly as

         12  possible?

         13                 MR. LINKY: I do know I can speak to

         14  NYSERDA's efforts. I have to take at face value that

         15  the City has been active. I think in terms of

         16  procurement, that's clearly an administrative legal

         17  matter, since I'm a lawyer by training, and don't

         18  want to stray into those areas.

         19                 I do think that if the technical

         20  considerations in the legislation can be addressed,

         21  moving in this direction would be a good move.

         22                 New York City, and I did check with

         23  my colleagues on a conference call right before I

         24  was here, and I asked the question does anybody know

         25  if a City has moved to mandate the purchase of
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          2  Energy Star-labeled equipment. And I had colleagues

          3  on the phone from Boston, Philadelphia, Washington,

          4  whatever, and although there are various efforts

          5  around talking about it, nobody has actually moved

          6  in that direction.

          7                 Again, if the technical legal

          8  procurement considerations can be overcome, I think

          9  it would definitely help, as NYSERDA said, New York

         10  City can help shape and drive the market.

         11                 I think your introductory comments

         12  were right on target by saying it's not a panacea. I

         13  think if you read the first paragraph of my

         14  statement, energy efficiency over time can in fact

         15  help achieve air quality.

         16                 The Europeans are moving toward a

         17  more demand-oriented approach to energy management,

         18  as opposed to supply. But Europe is societally and

         19  from an energy perspective totally different than

         20  the expanse of this country.

         21                 We need both supply and demand

         22  approaches. And the interesting thing is, in this

         23  dynamic environment, and I'm talking now over 30

         24  years, there is so much technology in the pipeline,

         25  even with respect to lighting, that I'm looking up
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          2  in the ceiling now, and this represents your, you

          3  know, state-of-the-art market-based, there is

          4  lighting in the development pipeline, which will cut

          5  that energy usage by two-thirds.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: By two-thirds.

          7                 MR. LINKY: And it's all based on

          8  Smart sensing. There will be a sensor in the room

          9  that will pick up daylighting, any light thrown off

         10  from your computer, and it will adjust to your work

         11  space exactly the amount of light that you want and

         12  no more.

         13                 There is that type of Smart

         14  technology already in the pipeline.

         15                 You probably heard about a nano

         16  technology center being created at Brookhaven

         17  National Lab, this is down the stream, but

         18  essentially you can be looking at bacteria-sized

         19  computer chips in 15 years.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Bacteria size?

         21                 MR. LINKY: Bacteria size.

         22  Microscopic. That will take the two-thirds reduction

         23  over that and reduce it yet even more.

         24                 But right now we have heat, air

         25  quality, smog and stuff like that, and Energy Start
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          2  is what we have and I think, if you can accept my

          3  candid unbiased promotion of Energy Star, I've seen

          4  a lot of programs over time, Energy Star is in fact

          5  that unifying label. It's not a panacea, but the one

          6  thing that's really impressed me about the way EPA

          7  and DOE have approached this is, they've actually

          8  sent representatives in Washington to the US Brands

          9  Council and they've studied and really asked from a

         10  customer-driven point, what does it take to build

         11  confidence in a brand. So, when you use a band-aid

         12  or you take aspirin and you know it's going to work

         13  and you've got confidence in that, that's what we're

         14  attempting to do with the Energy Star label.

         15                 And over time it will build out. I

         16  helped create an Energy Star office products program

         17  in Taiwan, which was the last major computer maker

         18  to build in that regard. So there is real potential

         19  in this, and what I would say is the way in which

         20  the federal government is moving, and it hasn't

         21  always done so in this way, it really, really looked

         22  at the customer side of the fence, what does it take

         23  for somebody to see Energy Star and say, hey, no

         24  questions asked, I want it. And that's why I feel

         25  really good and enthusiastic, and I hope you

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            85

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  understand I'm pumped up about it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, now, about

          4  two years ago I was out in California, I went to a

          5  friend's house, and they had sensors so if the light

          6  did not detect any movement the lights would

          7  automatically go out in each room. And I know that I

          8  don't have that in my apartment, but my kids love

          9  the lights to stay on, and I'm "what are these

         10  lights doing on? There's no one in there, turn it

         11  off." As far as cost factor, to have that type of

         12  technology in your home where it senses whether or

         13  not someone is in there and turns out automatically?

         14                 MR. LINKY: For the residential

         15  application there's stuff that's available, but I

         16  would caution you, be careful of what you ask for.

         17                 In my office there's a sensor, and my

         18  computer is oriented away from the sensor, so when

         19  people walk by and I hear this little beeping flash,

         20  I have to basically start waving wildly to get the

         21  attention of the sensor to keep the lights on, or

         22  otherwise click.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The lights will

         24  go out.

         25                 MR. LINKY: Yes.
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          2                 I mean, a lot of people say, who is

          3  that strange guy? There are ways to fix that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Are there any

          5  other cities or municipalities, legislative bodies

          6  that have set forward a policy by introduction or

          7  change in law that you are aware of that we are

          8  following, or are we taking the lead in this

          9  particular matter?

         10                 MR. LINKY: This afternoon, right

         11  before I walked over I did ask the question, and I

         12  do know the City of Philadelphia had talked about

         13  something but I wasn't able to verify they actually

         14  moved in that direction.

         15                 In some cases it could have been an

         16  executive order from the Mayor. Again, I can't be

         17  sure.

         18                 There were representatives on from

         19  Boston and they clearly indicated that there was

         20  nothing generated from the Council side, the

         21  legislative side of things.

         22                 So, I think in that regard, as far as

         23  I know today probably in the vanguard, and I tend to

         24  follow NYSERDA's lead, if they think this will make

         25  a difference, NYSERDA certainly understands the
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          2  power market, the opportunities for energy

          3  efficiency a lot more specifically than I do. So, if

          4  NYSERDA thinks this is a move in the right

          5  direction, I have to believe that it is a good move.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Any other

          7  questions or comments?

          8                 So where did you travel from?

          9                 MR. LINKY: 290 Broadway.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I assumed you

         11  walked here.

         12                 MR. LINKY: I did. I could not get

         13  through security at City Hall because I had my keys

         14  on me, so I had to go back, leave them, and then

         15  come back here. So, the New York City Police

         16  Department is doing its job as well.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I want to

         18  thank you for coming and giving testimony and

         19  sharing with us the label and the packet of

         20  information.

         21                 From a PR point of view, how do you

         22  think it would look if I carried in this huge 14,000

         23  btu air conditioner into PC Richards or some other

         24  store and ran an ad in our local paper that City

         25  Council member goes to Energy Star?
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          2                 MR. LINKY: I think --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you think I'd

          4  be re-elected?

          5                 MR. LINKY: I think from an energy

          6  efficiency perspective, and having spent some years

          7  with the New Jersey State Legislature, this is an

          8  opportunity too good to be missed, and I think your

          9  physical trainer would be very impressed if you

         10  carried a 14,000 btu air conditioner in.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you

         12  for coming and giving testimony and insight into

         13  this very important issue.

         14                 MR. LINKY: Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         16                 And we're going to have read into the

         17  record the testimony of Mark Caserta, from the New

         18  York League of Conservation Voters, and I'm going to

         19  ask our Counsel, Robert Newman, to read it into the

         20  record, and if anybody wants a copy, we would be

         21  glad to share it with you.

         22                 Robert.

         23                 MR. NEWMAN: Thank you.

         24                 "Good afternoon. My name is Mark

         25  Caserta. I am the New York City Policy and Advocacy
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          2  Director for the New York League of Conservation

          3  Voters.

          4                 On behalf of the League, I am pleased

          5  to provide testimony in favor of Intro. 156.

          6                 The New York League of Conservation

          7  Voters is a statewide organization that interviews

          8  and endorses candidates for public office that are

          9  pro-environment. During the summer of 2001, the

         10  League interviewed and endorsed a record number of

         11  candidates for local offices in New York City. One

         12  of our key questions centered around what New York

         13  City elected officials could do to reduce energy

         14  consumption in the city, given the belief by experts

         15  at the New York Independent System Operator that New

         16  York would experience a shortage of up to 400

         17  megawatts in the summer of 2001.

         18                 Many of the candidates answered

         19  correctly, that city government could significantly

         20  reduce its energy consumption by giving preference

         21  to purchasing energy efficient products. We are,

         22  therefore, pleased to see that this idea has taken

         23  hold in the Council in the form of Intro. 156.

         24                 I want to congratulate and thank

         25  Speaker Gifford Miller, the sponsors and co-sponsors
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          2  of this bill and the members of the Committee on

          3  Contracts for showing great vision and leadership in

          4  developing Intro. 156.

          5                 My comments are brief, because this

          6  bill is largely consistent with the policy goals of

          7  the New York League of Conservation Voters. However,

          8  I believe that the goals of this bill should be

          9  expanded in two ways:

         10                 First, the bill requires the

         11  designated City agency to issue an annual report on

         12  its progress to the City Council and Mayor. While I

         13  think that this is an important oversight tool, I

         14  believe that the public would be better served if

         15  the progress was reported regularly in the Mayor's

         16  Management Report, where watchdogs, advocates and

         17  the public at large can keep an eye on the city's

         18  progress.

         19                 The information should reflect how

         20  the city's purchasing has changed over the past

         21  year, as well as provide an estimate of the amount

         22  of energy the City is saving by using these new

         23  products.

         24                 Second, this bill provides an

         25  excellent opportunity for the Mayor and City Council
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          2  to take leadership in reducing overall energy

          3  consumption in the city.

          4                 In conjunction with the goals of this

          5  bill, the city could implement a number of other

          6  energy saving policies, such as auditing the energy

          7  consumption of each agency and developing annual

          8  energy saving targets, implementing green building

          9  standards for all new city buildings and developing

         10  a capital plan to make older city buildings more

         11  energy efficient, to name a few.

         12                 The city's progress in saving energy

         13  could, and should be reported on the city's web site

         14  and in the Mayor's Management Report, and this show

         15  of leadership should be followed up with a public

         16  relations campaign, similar to previous campaigns

         17  for recycling.

         18                 In other words, Intro. 156 should be

         19  seen as the first step to not only making City

         20  government more energy efficient, but also in

         21  providing an example for private home owners and

         22  businesses, as well.

         23                 As you know, the proliferation of

         24  temporary and permanent power plants along on the

         25  city's shorelines is a recent, alarming trend. These
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          2  plants are often placed in poor communities of color

          3  which have few acres of public park land and fewer

          4  opportunities to access their post-industrial

          5  waterfronts.

          6                 One of the best ways for the city to

          7  continue its waterfront renaissance and to prevent

          8  proliferation of these power plants is to reduce its

          9  own energy demands and encourage others to do so by

         10  example. Failure to do so could significantly reduce

         11  the quality of life for millions of New Yorkers and

         12  permanently close our waterfront for future

         13  generations.

         14                 Thank you."

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Are there any

         16  other speakers from the public that would like to

         17  speak?

         18                 Okay, hearing none, then I'll call

         19  this meeting adjourned.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 3:15 p.m.)

         22

         23

         24

         25
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 9th day of July 2002.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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